ASHBY CUM FENBY PARISH COUNCIL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 5TH JULY 2021 AT 7.00PM IN THE CHURCH HALL, MAIN ROAD, ASHBY CUM FENBY

Present:

Cllr John Shaw Cllr Jane Thomson Cllr Carol Shaw Cllr Nick Pettigrew Cllr Brian Purchon Cllr David Hornby

In Attendance: Kim Kirkham Parish Clerk

Two Members of the public PCSO Barrie Clark

21/038 To receive apologies from Members not able to attend the meeting.

Apologies were received from Ward Cllr Jackson.

21/039 Declaration of Interest (Model Code of Conduct Order 2012).

- (a) To record declaration of interest by any member of the Parish Council in respect of the agenda items listed below. Members declaring interest should identify the agenda item and type of interest being declared.
 Cllr Pettigrew declared a Personal Interest in Agenda Item 21/043 Whitsend Farm and FP89.
- (b) To note dispensation's given to any member of the council in respect of the Agenda Items listed below None applied for.
- 21/040 Questions raised by members of the public on agenda items (15minutes).

Two members of the public attended the meeting to observe.

21/041 To approve the Minutes of the Meetings held on 7th June 2021.

To consider and approve the minutes held on 7th June 2021. **Resolved: The minutes of the 7th** June 2021 were approved as a true record and the Chairman signed them.

21/042 Police Report

PCSO Clark was in attendance and reported that he had taken over from PCSO Lesley Parry who has now retired. He reported that during June there have been 14 crimes in the Waltham Ward, which are mostly burglaries. He said that 'Drop In' sessions are being held at Waltham Parish Box, Kirkgate every three weeks starting on Saturday 10th July at 11.30 to 12.30 and are also considering holding sessions in Ashby cum Fenby and Brigsley Parish. Cllr Hornby enquired if there were any outcome regarding motor cycle theft. PCSO Clark said that all thefts are being investigated. He said that any issues should be reported through the normal channels as usual. The Chair thanked him for attending the meeting. *Action: Clerk to post Police Report on the Parish Notice Board.*

21/043 Highways / Public Footpaths / Items Carried Forward:

- 09/104 Whitsend Farm Chair said that this item could be deferred until the end of the meeting due to Cllr Pettigrew declaring an interest.
- 20/072 FP89 Safety Issues Clerk advised that this matter is ongoing. Resolved: Ongoing

- 20/112-2 The Stables Martin Ambler (NELC Enforcement Officer) email said that this
 investigation is now with NELC Legal Services for their assessment regarding further formal
 action given the continued non-compliance in this case and as soon as he has any further
 news, he will let the Parish Council know. *Resolved: Ongoing.*
- 20/152-1 Great British Spring Clean Campaign 28th May to 13th June 2021 –Cllr Thomson reported that eight residents attended the litter pick, and six bags of rubbish were collected. *Resolved: A big thank you to all who attended this event.*
- 20/152-2 Land at the back of the Church Hall Clerk reported that she has spoken to the landowner, who confirmed that the hardcore has been removed.
- 21/021-3 Newsletter Clerk advised that the amendment for the newsletter that was
 discussed at the last meeting was actioned. She confirmed that the newsletter was placed on
 the notice board, uploaded to the website and emailed to residents who had requested a
 copy. Cllr Hornby mentioned that Martin Vickers MP has suggested that he could contribute
 to the newsletter by writing a non-political article if required. Cllr Hornby also asked why the
 newsletters were not delivered by hand. Cllr Thomson advised that they used to be, but after
 lengthy discussions and liaising with residents, it was agreed to stop delivery and email
 copies to residents who had requested a copy. Resolved: The Parish Council agreed to
 investigate matter further. Clerk was asked to find out how many visits the website
 has each month.
- 21/032-1 Emergency Plan Clerk advised that Wil-le has agreed be part of the plan. Cllr C. Shaw also confirmed that Doctor Guest has also confirmed his consent. *Resolved: Clerk to* add details to the plan and upload onto the Website.
- 21/032-2 Community Led Plan review The Parish Council reviewed the Community Led Plan; there are four key areas highlighted in the plan that require further discussion. *Resolved: The Parish Council agreed to look at the four key areas.*

21/044 Items for Discussion:

- Queens Platinum Jubilee Weekend Clerk advised that an extended bank holiday weekend will be held from Thursday 2nd to Sunday 5th June 2022 to celebrate this historic milestone, providing an opportunity for communities to organise events. Councillors discussed the possibility of holding a garden party to celebrate this milestone and agreed to diary date Sunday 5th June 2022. *Resolved: Clir C. Shaw said she would contact a resident to see if they will agree to hold this event in their garden.*
- Defibrillator checks Clerk advised that the checks were completed by Cllr C. Shaw on 28th June. The battery is due for replacement on 8th November 2022. *Resolved: Checks were completed and The Circuit (National Defibrillator Network) has been informed and status updated on their site.*
- 3. Ward Funding Projects Councillors discussed projects to be put forward for Ward Funding. Cllr Pettigrew agreed to obtain quotes to replace the flagpole, Cllr C. Shaw said she would get quotes for the replacement of the notice board and Clerk said she would contact NELC tree officer to enquire if any of the trees on the village green have a preservation order on them and will obtain quotes to have them cutback. *Resolved: The Parish Council agreed to obtain quotes.*

21/045 Planning Matters

Application Received:

a) DM/0609/21/FUL – Willow Lakes Hill Top Farm, Barton Street. Variation of condition 2 (Approved Plans) as granted on DM/1162/19/FUL for revision to omit green roof and install solar panels. Resolved: The Parish Council reviewed the plans and recommended refusal of this applications on the grounds that due to the sites location, on the boundary of an Area of Outstanding Beauty solar panels would have a detrimental impact on the visual aesthetics, the impact and loss of habitat that the panels may create could prove a possible threat to biodiversity.

Pending Consideration:

 a) DM/0513/21/FUL – Land Adj Field Gates, Post Office Lane. Temporary siting of a static caravan for a period of 18 months during the build phase for the new dwelling on site (resubmission of planning application DM/0907/20/FUL.

Approved:

- b) DM/00270/21/FUL Land Adj Field Gates, Post Office Lane. Change of Use of Agricultural Land to Equine Use.
- 21/046 <u>Clerk's Report To receive and report any correspondence from Councillors or Members of the</u> <u>Public for consideration at the meeting</u>
 - 1. Concerns were raised regarding mud on the road near Park Close property, which has been reported to Kerry Walker (NELC Enforcement Department).
 - 2. SSE contract ends on 31st August 2021, the new monthly charge has increased from £2.72 to £8.85. Clerk to contact SSE to find out why there has been such a significant increase.
 - 3. Email has been received regarding adding a link to the website. Councillors raised concerns on responsibility of promoting sites and agreed not to place the link on the website.
 - 4. ERNLLCA has asked for the number of members who would be interested in Equality and Diversity training. Councillors to contact the clerk if interested.
 - 5. The agenda item that was put forward to be discussed at the Town & Parish Liaison Committee has been forwarded to the assistant director within NELC for his response.
 - 6. North East Lincolnshire district meeting will be held on Thursday 15th July at 7pm via Zoom. Councillors to contact the clerk if they wish to attend.

21/047 Future Dates

- Date of Next Meeting Monday 2nd August 2021 at 7pm in the Church Hall.
- Planning Committee Meeting Wednesday 14th July 2021 at 9.30am in Grimsby Town Hall.
- Town & Parish Liaison Committee meeting Thursday 8th July at 7pm in Grimsby Town Hall.

21/048 Finance

• To receive a Financial Review for Quarter 1 – The Parish Council reviewed the income and expenditure given by the clerk.

To receive a list of Accounts payable up to 7th June 2021 and approve their payment: -

- 1) Kim Kirkham Salary £143.00
- 2) Southern Electric Telephone Box electric supply £7.12
- 3) Ashby PCC Room Hire £35.00

RESOLVED: Accounts approved for payment.

21/043 09/104 Whitsend Farm – Clerk read the update received from Cllr Jackson. *Resolved: On going*

The meeting closed at 20.24.

Prepared by Kim Kirkham, Parish Clerk

Approved by:_____

These minutes are subject to approval at the next meeting of the Parish Council.



Local Community News

Waltham, Brigsley & Ashby-cum-Fenby July Update

Crime

There were fourteen crimes reported during June for the Waltham Ward. Of these, the following offences have occurred.

On 13th June a property on Ings Lane was entered after glass in a patio door was smashed to gain entry. Property was stolen.

A mountain bike was stolen from a garage at a property on Elm Road during the evening of 15th June.

Taxi licence plates were stolen from the rear of a car parked on Wheatfield Drive during the early hours of 12th June. Following an altercation on Church View between two women who knew each other, a car belonging to one of them was damaged when the other used an implement to scratch the bodywork.

A male was arrested on Waltham Road Brigsley after being stopped in his car by a police patrol. The male was arrested for suspected driving under the influence of drugs, possession of controlled drugs and offensive weapon.

Other crime include:

Four thefts from the Co-Op. Theft of milk from the doorstep of a nursery on Salisbury Court.

One assault. One offence of sending malicious communications.

An ongoing neighbour dispute has again been reported with two crimes being recorded for public order and making threats to cause damage following the latest incident.

There have been nine reports of ASB. These include:

Motorcycles being ridden illegally x3, Neighbour disputes x4, Vehicles being driven on the airfield x2

PCSO Lesley Parry has now retired from Humberside Police to take up new ventures. We all wish her well and best wishes for the future.

PCSO Barrie Clark has now taken over from Lesley, having previously worked on the South Ward.

How you can help

Your local Neighbourhood Policing Team appreciates the importance of being in the right place, at the right time, for the right reasons to reassure the public, improve public confidence and reduce crime and anti-social behaviour in the area which we all live and work.

We encourage all residents to call and report any issues where they live so that we can deal with any issues and also step up our patrols in the area. The number to call for non-emergency issues is 101.

If you feel there are issues in your community that your local Police should be prioritising please inform your local officers or the local Parish Council.

The named officers for Waltham Ward are: PC 2056 Chris Skelton <u>christopher.skelton@humberside.pnn.police.uk</u> PCSO 7753 Barrie Clark <u>barrie.clark@humberside.pnn.police.uk</u>